

173

1911



EAST AFR PROT  
UGANDA

18763

18763  
REGD &  
REGD 9 JUN 11



Exchange of currency notes for gold  
Supply of Rupees in Uganda

Permit issued. Consider is of great importance  
that Bank be kept, and it applies to the rupees  
now received. Exchange of currency, & regards  
the rupees for many years difficult.

George W. Fiddes - Monday, 19<sup>th</sup> June

Mr. B.  
June 16

W. Fiddes.

To Treasury  
Draft herewith for consent, as result  
of yesterday's meeting, at which Mr.  
Fiddes, Mr. Collins, Mr. Bowring, & Mr.  
Major, ~~I~~ were present.

Mr. B.  
June 20

H. J. R.  
21/II

Low Lures  
to Harcourt

This is an important matter. Please

(S. 412) W.M. GOLDFLD  
49,000 11/10, A.C.E.W.

Next subsequent page

1950

confess Mr. 19th will be forced to  
arouse with his orders of repudiation; he then  
will bring revolution, and I defer the view  
of the bold people that the change would be  
too unsettling the nation. The revenue upon  
is as yet as present.

I agree generally with the accompanying  
affidavit. They state more briefly &  
more accurately, if less <sup>fully</sup>, any facts that  
can be easily understood by any reader to come.

I have  
written  
privately  
to Mr. B.  
L. D.

H. J. R.  
any  
Barker?  
any  
private

Mr. Harcourt

The question is a difficult one. Obviously  
gold is not wanted in the Protectorate, and  
for internal use, and so long as trade & <sup>gold</sup>  
are expanding, it is not likely to be wanted  
for export, and in any case so long as the value  
of the Rupee is maintained by India the Rupee  
can be used for international settlement.

The proper solution in the circumstances  
will have to be to declare gold no

metal today. That would ~~make~~ <sup>make</sup> it  
as if it were ~~wanted~~ to be melted back  
into the soil in local smelters  
so long as the currency ~~is~~ <sup>is</sup> ~~not~~ <sup>not</sup> ~~wanted~~ <sup>wanted</sup>  
and ~~is~~ <sup>is</sup> ~~wanted~~ <sup>wanted</sup> to maintain the ~~value~~ <sup>value</sup> of  
notes.

I would at the same time be prepared  
to accept gold in London at a discount  
offered to cover the cost of importation  
say £100 a ton. The banks would then  
have the option of bringing in Rupees  
themselves or of getting them from the  
Eximbank (Bank of India) who would be  
covered.

I presume there is no chance of getting  
India to do what the Imperial Govt. do  
in regard to silver coin - put it down  
free of cost where it is wanted. We feel  
that the Imperial Govt. does so, is of course  
an argument for English currency.

but I do not know enough of the local circumstances  
to say whether great inconveniences  
would be caused by that step.

U.S. 30.6

Aug. 3. 7. 10.

Sir Sanderson

I thank you for your letter of the 20<sup>th</sup> July.  
I have made a few experiments  
and, ~~so far~~, <sup>so far</sup> good news?

Yrs. 67.



Russell & Co. Ltd.



Park Row

Kingsbridge

9th June 1911.

Sir.

I enclose herewith

to my family been  
of some, it has not  
been presented for me

to supply before to you

letter No 16597/11 of the

No 16597  
3<sup>rd</sup> May 1911.

My views on the

question

of the Secretary of State  
Colonial Office

Domestic Street

Has come to demand to  
be Governor of British  
East Africa. etc 1882

On the 7th of April 1882

He has been present  
in East Africa & has been  
under demand

for his appointment to  
East Africa & Uganda  
and so long as currency  
notes for Rs. 20, 10 and 5  
are available I see  
no objection to his

question of the availability  
of currency notes for  
gold in the East Africa  
is to be left to him and  
to take care of it.

He has been present  
in East Africa & has been  
under demand

I can only now  
add to what I have  
already written that  
I shall make the necessary  
expressions to him  
and to the Secretary

Malcom

5  
demand necessary to  
any appreciable extent.

Representation  
of the National Bank  
of India states "although  
the sovereign has been  
made a legal tender  
it does not circulate  
and is practically  
useless for current  
purposes. — I entirely  
agree with him."

Personally  
I should like to see

a Gold Standard in  
British South Africa

but I am convinced  
that there is the danger  
of capital outflow  
which has so far  
accurred, there must  
be little demand after  
gold. The want of  
holes of low values has  
been successful in  
the past and this

will always now make

I am now disturbed  
and the paper has  
been considerably

~~in the regard~~  
~~of~~  
the paper  
is liable to  
be issued from the  
Chief Agent of the  
Standard Bank of  
South Africa, London.

To be held (confidential)  
1<sup>o</sup> 23 from the Governor <sup>14638</sup>  
of British of East Africa  
I must now set out

most of the ~~gold~~ referred  
to has laid down by  
the National Bank of  
India when it first  
began notes for  
circulation, and makes  
far from the Currency  
Commissioner having  
done largely in gold  
him to the advantage  
of the Standard Bank - the  
Bank has  
practically ceased for  
some time past to

demand gold in exchange  
for notes.

I consider it  
of the utmost importance  
that Uganda and also  
British East Africa

in their present places  
of dependence should

be kept ample supplies  
of bullion and that

the Government therefore  
should stand no effort

to that end.

I also submit

that the present time  
is not a suitable one  
to apply to change the  
Currency of the two Protectorates  
as at present at least, the  
Standard Bank and the  
Lusaka Mining Association

are great factors  
in Standard Bank for  
South Africa, whereas  
a Gold Standard Bank  
would give itself a  
disadvantage in a copper  
Country but I see no  
risk.

seen why the Government  
should suddenly  
introduce a Gold Standard  
on that account and  
I suggest that  
it is necessary for  
Government to do  
very little to encourage  
of gold and silver  
Bank by the removal  
restrictions - Some  
such option must exist  
I think no legal limitation  
of a bank which was  
bad on the matter - It  
is big mistake

to get things to  
the greatest prosperity that  
the general public may  
be induced to turn the  
concerns of a nation  
of the hand of the  
hi Shearings, he paid the  
bright the expense  
of the Bank, on the  
understanding that the  
amount in his power  
each case - to be  
retained as his last  
possible opportunity  
and had until it is so  
return

re turned to Bank his  
L. o. in the sum it ma  
not be ~~less~~  
exchan

note of

over a

30

H.  
18763

E. A. P.

DRAFT

Lord Lucas - 28

Sir J. Anderson

Mr. Harcourt, M. 28.6.77

for conversion

1. Feb. 2 (fn 301)  
 Govt. Feb. 6 (31st)  
 National Bank of India March 2 (32nd)  
 2. 26. April 7 (on)  
 Govt. 23. Conf. April 7 (1858)  
 W. Bowring June 4 (1861)  
 W. Mayo June 7 (1873)

on  
 prison as to the right form of currency which should be accepted by the Currency Commissioners of the East Africa Protectorate for currency notes issued by them and in which notes presented to them for payment should be redeemed.

2. Mr. Harcourt learns that when the currency note issue was first introduced

instituted, the National Bank of India,

which was at that time the only Bank established in the Protectorate, laid down a very large amount of sovereigns in payment for notes issued to the Bank.

Since that time the National Bank has paid in rupees for the notes which has required. No difficulty appears have arisen in this connection

and the Standard Bank of South Africa recently established a branch in the Protectorate. That Bank <sup>which is in a position to import sovereigns</sup> desires, and even claims, to be allowed to pay in sovereigns for the notes which the Currency Commissioners issue to it.

As their Lordships are aware, the Indian rupee is the standard coin of the Protectorate, and gold ~~cash~~ is used little, if at all, in the commercial transactions of the country. The Standard Bank, therefore, desires

desire any notes which they may present for redemption to be cashed in rupees. Moreover, owing to the present course of the business of the two banks, there is a tendency for the notes issued to the Standard Bank to find their way to the National Bank either direct or by way of the Government account with the National Bank. The National Bank ~~is in fact~~ <sup>takes full charge</sup>, therefore, under the obligation of presenting for payment, when it

necessarily requires in rupees, notes for which the Standard Bank - ~~indeed the~~ <sup>are now</sup> ~~paid~~ <sup>paid</sup> from the Currency Commissioners by the Standard Bank for sovereigns. There is thus every prospect that, if this process continues, the Currency Commissioners will find themselves holding more and more sovereigns for the coin portion of the note currency Fund, while rupees will continue to be demanded in exchange for the notes presented.

presented for redemption.

3. It is clearly open to the

~~Government Commissioners~~ to redeem in

them for pay-

under para-

rka and

by To do so

endeavour to put

emergency

community  
in case of trade.

The

in the

Government of India.

if rendered necessary,

cheques

the

view

of Indian

and native Government employees the result

be very difficult

DRAFT.

4. The action of the Standard

Bank ~~on~~ the matter is stated to be

based on their view that it is the

function of the government to supply

the currency, in this case rupees,

requirements of the community, and that

they should be in a position to

issue emergency notes, such as

stander currency for my Son Central

them, in trust to the Government

or redeeming those notes in such

form of legal tender currency as may

be convenient to those who present the

notes for reception. Mr Harcourt is

unable to accept this view of the

obligations of the government when

there are already banks established in

the Protectorate through whom supplies

of currency can be obtained by those

who need it in the ordinary way of business.

5. It appears that, in view of

the considerations already stated, the

Crown Commissioners have not hitherto

settled on redeeming notes in gold, but

it has not been resolved which

of the two or three decided methods

is to be adopted, and the

amount of every body's note

is to be paid in gold at

the rate of Rs. 10/- against

the value of the note.

The Crown Commissioners

have not yet decided on the

amount of the Note Guarantee Fund

which is to be Rs. 11,604,97. Of this latter

amount Rs. 948,000 will be gold and Rs. 631,497

in silver. In Mr. Percourt's opinion

this constitutes a very serious difference.

The principle on which the division

of the Note Guarantee Fund into an invested

portion and coin portion is based is that

the

the coin portion shall constitute a fund from which any probable demand for redemption of notes can be promptly and safely met. It will be seen from

the figures given above that about

three-fifths of the coin portion

the fund is actually held in government

which is useless for the needs of

the community, which the Janes would

fore see unwilling to accept

the conversion of notes, and may even

use the portion of the fund

into circulation, would result in

a serious embarrassment to

Government.

6. The temporary arrangement

in the Protectorate pending consideration

of this matter has not been

to prescribe that no offer of gold in

payment for notes required will be

accepted unless one half of the amount

is paid in London to the Crown Agents

for

for the Colonies for investment for  
the credit of the invested portion  
of the Note Guarantee Fund. The ob-  
ject of what is apparently to avoid  
the cost of remitting for the purposes  
of such investment and so to diminish  
to some extent the expense which will  
sooner or later be imposed upon the  
Currency Commissioners to execute the

~~order~~ which they receive this source  
~~of~~ does not, however, appear to meet the case  
~~of~~ sufficiently. The Standard Bank

~~which~~ have already availed  
themselves of this arrangement makes

the charge ~~for~~ ~~it~~ is virtually  
and it also allows no free  
remittance. The device, moreover, does

not meet the difficulty that the coin  
is actually added to the coin portion of the

guarantee Fund is in sovereigns and not  
in rupees. The arrangement is also open

to the objection that it renders more

DRAFT.

likely a time tension of the rule that  
at least half of the Note Guarantee Fund  
shall be kept in coin. If immediately  
or soon after the prompt investment of  
one half of the amount paid for notes  
under this arrangement the Bank found  
it convenient to present for redemption  
the whole of the note part of the notes  
so purchased, the note portion of  
the guarantee fund unless there did  
not appear a considerable sum  
which would be once sixty five 50 per  
cent of the total guarantee fund. The sale  
allowed by remittance by the Currency  
Commissioners for investment in the  
ordinary course gives an opportunity  
for classifying more accurately the  
invested and coin portion of the Fund  
and this more successfully avoids the  
danger referred to.

7. So far as Mr. Harcourt can see, the only solution of the difficulty is that indicated in the despatch which he addressed to the Governor of the Protectorate on the 1<sup>st</sup> August 1911, the 7th April last, namely, that a limit should be fixed to the amount of the portion of the note guarantee fund which may be kept in gold, and that, at that point has been reached, the Commissioners shall then refuse to accept gold in payment for notes. From the evidence which has been laid before him to a negligible extent to which gold is used in the Protectorate, Mr. Harcourt considers that the limit should be very small, say £5,000 (Rs. 70,000).

8. This proposal, however, raises at once the question whether the Currency Commissioners Board at present have power to refuse to accept gold coin tender in payment

for notes. The question would appear to depend upon the interpretation of paragraph 14 (1) of the East Africa and Uganda (Currency) Order 1905, which enacts that, subject to the provisions of the Order, the Currency Board may from time to time provide and issue and re-issue currency notes in exchange for the current coin. The word "may" in this paragraph appears to confer upon the Board a discretion in the exercise of which it might be held that they could refuse to issue notes except for standard coin, that is, rupees. On the other hand it appears to be a possible interpretation that the discretion conferred is exhausted if the Currency Board do not refuse to issue notes, and that, if on a particular occasion they consent to issue notes at all, they cannot discriminate between the one form

of current coin and another tendered  
in payment for the notes. To avoid all  
doubt on the subject, Mr. Harcourt is of  
opinion that the Order in Council should

be so made.

So

that

be by

the

the

days of issue, and

has recently been paid in by the

Bank. For the reasons stated above,

would

DRAFT.

would appear to be impracticable  
attempt to lower the stock by the method  
of redeeming notes in gold until the  
gold had fallen to the limit laid down.

Harcourt would therefore suggest

that the same

present stock for the limit if

should be exchanged for rupees

as may be found necessary,  
expense being restricted to incidental

expenses.

for a severe sale, sent to the

Bank of England, and then

reduced to the figure

10. Mr. Harcourt would be glad

to learn whether their Lordships concur

in his view of the situation and if

so, whether they would be so good as

to give the necessary directions

for the amendment of the Currents.

When the manner suggested in the

graph of this despatch.

Enclosure G

This paper

is to be

in number

Communications on this subject  
should be addressed to—

THE UNDER SECRETARY OF STATE,  
COLONIAL OFFICE,  
LONDON, S.W.,

and the following  
Number quoted. 18763/1911

97

Bowning Street,

Mr. Fisher 6.7

S. J. Anderson off

8 July, 1911.

Sir,

I am directed by Mr. Secretary Harcourt to transmit to you, to be laid before the Lords Commissioners of the Treasury, a copy of certain orders relating to difficulties which have arisen in the particular form of currency which should be accepted by the Currency Commissioners of the South Africa Bank of India, issued 22th. of S. No. 184. of 7th.

Mr. Harcourt understands that, when the currency note issue was first instituted, the National Bank of India, which was at that time the only Bank established in the Protectorate, laid down a very large amount of sovereigns in payment for notes issued to the Bank. Since that time the National Bank has paid in Rupees for the notes which it has required. No difficulty appears to have arisen until the Standard Bank of South Africa recently established a branch in the Protectorate. That Bank, which is in a position to import sovereigns more economically than rupees, desires and even claims, to be allowed to pay in sovereigns for the

notes

THE SECRETARY

TO THE TREASURY.

notes which the Currency Commissioners issue to them. As their Lordships are aware, the Indian rupee is the standard coin of the Protectorate, and gold coin is used little, if at all, in the commercial transactions of the country. The Standard Bank, therefore, desires any notes which it may present for redemption to be cashed in rupees. Moreover, owing to the present course of the business of the two Banks, there is a tendency for the notes issued to the Standard Bank to find their way to the National Bank either direct or by way of the Government account with the National Bank. The National Bank is, therefore, liable to find itself under the obligation of presenting for payment, which it naturally requires in rupees, notes for which the Standard Bank has tendered sovereigns to the Currency Commissioners. There is quite every prospect that, if this process continues, the Currency Commissioners will find themselves holding more and more sovereigns for the coin portion of the Note Guarantee Fund, while rupees will continue to be demanded in exchange for the notes presented for redemption.

3. It is clearly open to the Currency Commissioners, under paragraph 14 (3) of the East Africa and Uganda (Currency) Order in Council 1905, to redeem in sovereigns notes presented to them for payment. To do so would, however, be to endeavour to put into circulation a form of currency which is not required by the community and which could not be

be used in the ordinary course of trade. — The attempt would, indeed, recoil on the Government, as the National Bank of India, if burdened with gold in this manner, could retaliate by refusing to cash cheques drawn on the Government account, with that Bank in any form of currency except sovereigns. If such cheques were drawn, as would frequently be the case, with a view to the payment of large numbers of Indian and native Government employees, the results might be very serious.

4. The action of the Standard Bank in the matter is stated to be based on their view that it is the function of the Government to ensure an adequate supply of the currency, in this case sovereigns required by the community, and that they are therefore, within their rights, in pressing for payment for sovereign notes such form of legal tender currency as is convenient to them, leaving to the Government the task of redeeming those notes in such form of legal tender currency as may be convenient to those who present the notes for redemption. Mr. Harecourt is unable to accept this view of the obligations of the Government when there are already Banks established in the Protectorate through which supplies of currency can be obtained by the ordinary processes of business.

5. It appears that, in view of the considerations already stated, the Currency Commissioners have not hitherto insisted on redeeming notes in gold, but a point has now been reached at which it is necessary to decide what shall be their future course of action

in this respect. On the 10th of May last the total amount of currency notes in circulation was Rs. 26,74,000. Against this the Currency Commissioners held investments to the nominal value of £89,628 and the coin portion of the Note Guarantee Fund amounting to Rs. 15,60,497. Of the latter amount Rs. 945,000 was in gold and Rs. 632,497 in silver.

In Mr. Harcourt's opinion this constitutes a very serious position. The principle on which the division of the Note Guarantee Fund into an invested portion and a coin portion is based is that the coin portion will constitute a safe and reasonably available deposit for the public, and can be promptly and safely converted into currency. The figures given above show that the coin portion of the Fund is now equivalent to currency which is useless for circulation in the community, and which it is safe to assume will be unwilling to accept, and has an interest, to withdraw its portion of the Fund from the Note Guarantee Fund. This would probably result in serious loss to the Government.

6. The temporary expedient adopted in the Protectorate pending fuller consideration of the matter has been to prescribe that no tender of gold in payment for notes required will be accepted unless one half of the amount is paid in London to the Crown Agents for the Colonies for investment for the credit of the invested portion of the Note Guarantee Fund.

The  
F.H.

The device does not, however, appear to meet the case. The Standard Bank, which has alone availed itself of this arrangement, makes some charge for what is virtually a remittance. And it still remains the case that the coin actually added to the coin portion of the ~~Guarantee Fund~~ Fund is in sovereigns and not in rupees.

~~one~~

7. So far as Mr. Harcourt can see, the only solution of the difficulty is that indicated in the despatch which he addressed to the Governor of the Protectorate on the 7th of April last, namely, that a limit should be fixed to the amount of the coin portion of the Note Guarantee Fund that may be kept in gold, and that, when that limit has been reached, the Commissioners should refuse to accept gold in payment for notes. On the evidence which he has laid before him as to the negligible extent to which gold is used in the Protectorate, Mr. Harcourt considers that the limit should be very small, say £5,000 (Rs. 25,000).

This proposal, however, raises at once the question whether the Currency Commissioners at present have power to refuse to accept sovereigns tendered in payment for notes. The question would appear to depend upon the interpretation of paragraph 14 (1) of the East Africa and Uganda (Currency) Order 1905, which enacts that, subject to the provisions of the Order, the Currency Board may from time to time provide and issue and re-issue currency notes in exchange for current

On further consideration, Mr. Harcourt is  
 of opinion that the simplest solution would  
 be found in finding the Company to  
 carry on business there only <sup>and</sup> receive and  
 make ~~advances~~<sup>Standard Counterfeits</sup> in exchange for expenses. At  
 the same time the Comptroller of the Currency is compelled  
 to require to issue notes against gold  
 deposited with the Cr. Agents in London at  
 a premium deemed sufficient to cover the cost  
 of maintaining the equivalent of  
 India. The banks will then have the option of  
 bringing in paper currencies or of financing  
 their foreign trade by short term  
 credit from London.

current coin. The word "may" in this paragraph appears to confer upon the Board a discretion in the exercise of which it might be held that they could refuse to issue notes except for standard coin, that is, rupees. On the other hand, it appears to be a possible interpretation that the discretion conferred is exhausted if the Currency Board do not refuse to issue notes, and that, if on a particular occasion they consent to issue notes at all, they cannot discriminate between one form of current coin and another tendered in payment for the notes. To avoid all doubt on the subject, Mr. Harcourt is of opinion that the Order in Council should be so amended as to give the Currency Commissioners absolute discretion to refuse to issue notes for sovereigns while issuing them against other current coin.

8. It will still remain to be decided how the present stock of gold held by the Currency Commissioners, which is many times larger than the maximum amount now suggested, should be disposed of. It appears that, of the amount of about £68,000 at present held in gold, £43,000 or £44,000 was laid down by the National Bank of India in the early days of the note issue, and that the balance has recently been paid in by the Standard Bank. For the reasons stated above, it would appear to be impracticable to attempt to lower the stock by the method of redeeming notes in gold until the gold has fallen to the limit suggested, Mr. Harcourt would, therefore, propose that the excess

~~of the amount of gold at present held over the limit of £5,000 should be exchanged for rupees in such manner as may be found most economical, the expense being regarded as incidental to the working of the note issue, and that thereafter no notes should be issued for sovereigns except in the event of that part of the coin portion of the Note Guarantee Fund held in gold falling below £5,000, and then only to the extent required to restore it to that figure.~~

19. Mr. Harcourt would be glad to learn whether their Lordships concur in his view of the situation, and, if so, whether they would be so good as to give the necessary directions for the amendment of the Currency Order in the manner suggested in the 8th paragraph of this despatch.

Sir,

Your most obedient servant, G. V. Fieldes.

G. V. Fieldes.

P. Schedule of demands

(long)